
 

TOWN OF GRANITE QUARRY 
BOARD OF ALDERMEN REGULAR MEETING 

April 6, 2020 ~ 7:00 p.m. 
 

 
Call to Order Mayor Feather 
 
Determination of Quorum / Announcing Remote Participants if Necessary 
 
1. Approval of Agenda 

 
2. Approval of Consent Agenda 

A. Approval of the Minutes 
1) Planning Retreat Meeting Minutes February 28, 2020 
2) Regular Meeting Minutes March 2, 2020 
3) Recess Meeting Minutes March 9, 2020 
4) Recess Meeting Minutes March 11, 2020 
5) Resolution 2020-04 in support of Salisbury’s request for water protection 
6) Resolution 2020-05 in support of an application for the Bicycle and Pedestrian Plan Grant 
7) Audit Contract with Eddie Carrick, CPA, PC for audit of accounts for FY1920 

B. Departmental Reports (Reports in Board packet) 
C. Financial Reports 

 
3. Citizen Comments 

(All comments are limited to 6 minutes. No sharing of minutes with other citizens) 
 

4. Town Manager Update (Report in Board packet) 
 
New Business 
5. Public Hearing     Capital Streets Project Installment Financing  

A. Open Public Hearing 
B. Public Comments 
C. Close Public Hearing 
D. Board Discussion / Review of Amended Resolution 2020-03 
 

ACTION REQUESTED: Motion to amend Resolution 2020-03, authorizing the Town Manager 
to act on behalf of the Town in filing an application for approval of the project, the proposed 
financing contract with F&M Bank, and other actions not inconsistent with the Resolution for the 
2020 Capital Streets Improvement Project. 
 
 

Town of Granite Quarry Page 1



6. Capital Project Ordinance 2020-07   2020 Capital Streets Improvement Project 
 

ACTION REQUESTED: Motion to approve Capital Project Ordinance 2020-07 for the 2020 Capital 
Streets Improvement Project. 
 

7. Quarry Site Grading & Fence Repair Quotes Chief Hord 
Request for Board action to appropriate funds to bring quarry site up to standards for eligibility for use 
as limb site. 

 
ACTION REQUESTED: Motion to move money from fund balance to line item 01-4190-24 in the 
amount of $25,000 to bring the quarry site up to the standard required to make the property useable for 
leaf and limb storage. 
 

8. Moratorium on Code Enforcement for 60 Days Discussion 
 

9. Approval of Contract    GoToMeeting/ LogMeIn 
 
ACTION REQUESTED: Motion to approve entering a contract with LogMeIn for $10.00 per month 
for twelve months for virtual meeting platform hosting services. 

 
Adjourn  
  

Town of Granite Quarry Page 2



Agenda Item Summary 
Regular Meeting 
April 6, 2020 
Agenda Item 1                            Approval of Agenda 

          
 
 

Summary: 
 

The Board may discuss, add, or delete items from the Regular 
Meeting agenda. 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Action Requested: 
 

Motion to adopt the April 6, 2020 Board of Aldermen Meeting 
Agenda (as presented / as amended). 

Motion Made By: 
Jim Costantino  

Kim Cress  

John Linker  

Doug Shelton  
  

Second By: 
Jim Costantino  

Kim Cress  

John Linker  

Doug Shelton  
  
 
 

 

For: 
Jim Costantino  

Kim Cress  

John Linker  

Doug Shelton  
  

Against: 
Jim Costantino  

Kim Cress  

John Linker  

Doug Shelton  
  

 
 
In case of tie: 
Mayor Bill Feather 
 For              

 Against      
 

Town of Granite Quarry Page 3



Agenda Item Summary 
Regular Meeting 
April 6, 2020 
Agenda Item 2   Approval of Consent Agenda 

Summary: 
The Board may discuss, add, or delete items from the Consent 
agenda. 

Attachments: 
• Planning Retreat Meeting Minutes February 28, 2020
• Regular Meeting Minutes March 2, 2020
• Recess Meeting Minutes March 9, 2020
• Recess Meeting Minutes March 11, 2020
• Resolution 2020-04 in support of Salisbury’s request 

for water protection
• Resolution 2020-05 in support of an application for the 

Bicycle and Pedestrian Plan Grant
• Audit Contract with Eddie Carrick, CPA, PC for audit 

of accounts for FY1920
• Departmental Reports
• Financial Reports

Action Requested: 
Motion to approve the consent agenda (as presented / as 
amended). 

Motion Made By: 
Jim Costantino 
Kim Cress 

John Linker 
Doug Shelton 

Second By: 
Jim Costantino 
Kim Cress 
John Linker 
Doug Shelton 

For: 
Jim Costantino 

Kim Cress 
John Linker 
Doug Shelton 

Against: 
Jim Costantino 
Kim Cress 
John Linker 
Doug Shelton 

In case of tie: 
Mayor Bill Feather 

For          
Against     

Town of Granite Quarry Page 4



                                                                  
TOWN OF GRANITE QUARRY 

BOARD OF ALDERMEN  
PLANNING RETREAT MEETING MINUTES 

Friday, February 28, 2020 8:30 a.m. 
 
Present:  Mayor Bill Feather, Mayor Pro Tem John Linker, Alderman Jim Costantino, Alderman 
Kim Cress, Alderman Doug Shelton 
 
Staff: Interim Town Manager Larry Smith, Town Planner Steve Blount, Town Clerk Aubrey 
Smith, Planning Coordinator Holly-Anne Franco, Fire Chief/ Maintenance Supervisor Jason Hord, 
Finance Officer Shelly Shockley, Police Chief Mark Cook 
 
Call to Order:  Mayor Feather called the meeting to order at 8:30 a.m. 
 
1. Approval of the Agenda 
 
ACTION:  Mayor Pro Tem Linker made a motion to approve the agenda as presented. Alderman 
Costantino seconded the motion.  The motion passed with all in favor. 
 
2. Agreement on Ground Rules/ Objectives for the day 
 
ACTION:  Alderman Shelton made a motion to accept the ground rules as presented.  Mayor Pro 
Tem Linker seconded the motion.  The motion passed with all in favor. 
 
3. Year End Review/ Carryover Items/ Pending Projects Larry Smith 
Mr. Smith reviewed the goal tracking sheet that showed several projects that were worked on and/ 
or completed over the last year. Completed projects included organizational assessments that will 
allow for comparison of duties rather than titles during the upcoming salary survey. He also spoke 
about the park projects, including steps and gazebo rails, being completed at the Lake Park. 
 
Other completed projects included the electronic information sign and the monitors in the Board 
Room. He gave updates to the Board on the status of multiple Town properties including 316 S. 
Main, the Marple properties, and the Byrd property. The Town Square design was completed and 
is ready for costing and the Industrial Development Grant is being worked on. The maintenance 
team partnered with Faith to build a sectional stage to be used at events for both towns. The FEMA 
Lake Park project, Capital Streets project, and the Town Hall Upgrades project are also in progress. 

Town of Granite Quarry Page 5



4. Addressing Board Objective Lists 
The Board reviewed the list of objectives compiled from what they each submitted and agreed that 
having five strategic projects and perhaps a secondary tier of department-level goals would be 
ideal for the coming year. 

 
5. Departmental Reports 

A. Finance       Shelly Shockley 
1) Finance Department Goals 
Ms. Shockley shared that her goals for the coming year were to research and bring 
recommendations for Town finance policies to the Board, continue to work towards her 
Finance Officer certification, and monitor investments to grow whenever possible. 
 
The Board complimented Ms. Shockley on the level of financial reporting and asked 
whether she needed any additional resources. She responded that she did not at this time. 
 
2) Parks, Events, and Recreation Committee Goals 
PERC will work on a parks master plan and focus on fewer events with pooled resources. 
The Board expressed support for this plan and discussed having a plan for sidewalks, trails, 
and parks in the town. The Board suggested working with other community groups 
including the Civitans. 
 

B. Fire        Chief Hord 
1) Personnel training and standards/ ISO prep 
Chief Hord discussed his strategy to invest in personnel training and ISO prep. A change 
in the ISO will affect homeowner insurance rates. 

 
2) Fleet and equipment needs 
The Fire Department will continue the refurb on the second engine. They hope to add 
another vehicle for medical response and lose a second, older vehicle. There was Board 
discussion regarding bay doors and extending the bays in the future. 
 

C. Maintenance       Chief Hord 
1) Increase street maintenance abilities 
Chief Hord shared that street maintenance is the biggest issue his team faces. His goal is to 
have an asphalt patching trailer and motorized tamp. The Board discussed this plan and 
voiced support of an additional building for storing maintenance equipment. 

 
2) Fleet needs 
Chief Hord stated that he would like to increase his fleet by adding a vehicle for 
maintenance and code enforcement. There was Board discussion regarding what size 
vehicle it should be. 

 
 

Town of Granite Quarry Page 6



D. Police        Chief Cook 
Chief Cook shared that he is looking at funding sources including grants for staffing needs. 
He reviewed a League program for free Risk Review. The process would involve assessment 
of areas for improvement including policies, training, supervision, and performance. The 
process would take one year. The amount saved on insurance rates could help cover any 
additional administrative cost during the process. 
 
Chief Cook shared that his second major goal was a review of salary and staffing levels. He 
stated the Joint Police Authority is, on average, offering four to five thousand dollars less than 
anywhere else in the county and that retention would eventually become an issue. 
 
There was discussion regarding the Joint Police Authority’s funding and whether a flat rate 
from Faith, a contractual relationship, or the Authority running itself would be options worth 
considering. The funding will be brought up at the upcoming JPA meeting. 

The Board took a ten-minute recess from 10:25 a.m. to 10:35 a.m. 
   

E. Administration      Larry Smith 
1) Charter, Ordinance, Policy, Rules of Procedure 
Outside resources are being considered for the policy updates. The charter and ordinance 
revisions are ongoing. There was brief discussion regarding the fact that 160D will require 
changes to the ordinance and some Board procedures. 
 
2) Salary/ Compensation Survey 
Mr. Smith shared that staff would continue to straighten out manuals and procedures. 
Priority focus is on recruitment, retention, and training for staff. More on this topic will be 
presented during the budget workshop. 
 
3) Revitalization Team Goals 

• Town Square 
• Downtown Master Plan 

 
Ideally a joint meeting with the Revitalization Team and the Board of Aldermen 
will take place to discuss moving forward with the Town Square Project and to 
review the Downtown Master Plan. 
 
• Support US 52 Sidewalks/ Curb & Gutter 
There was Board discussion regarding the curb and gutter project and the desired 
outcomes. 
 

F. Planning       
1) Code Enforcement     Holly-Anne Franco 

• Numbers – where emphasis has been 

Town of Granite Quarry Page 7



• Existing approach to code enforcement 
Ms. Franco shared handouts that included a table of what types of violations had 
been recorded and a flowchart of the current process for code enforcement. Currently 
she focuses on the town in quadrants to devote equal attention to each. The Board 
was in support of her plan to educate and continue to enforce the ordinances without 
being selective. The Board agreed they could address necessary changes to the 
ordinances after review. 
 
• Community Appearance Commission 
Ms. Franco shared her current efforts to recruit for the CAC and will continue 
outreach. The Board suggested working with the Civitans since they are also trying 
to recruit. 
 

6. Presentations/ Board Discussion                                        Steve Blount 
G. Town Growth 
H. Comprehensive Land Use Plan 
I. Preliminary Sidewalk Plan 
 
Mr. Blount reviewed a combined presentation on town growth, critical issues, and action items 
identified in the recently updated Comprehensive Land Use Plan. He also presented to the 
Board a Preliminary Sidewalk Plan as an example of a way to address the critical issue of 
achieving the goal to be a walkable community. 
 
There was Board discussion on stormwater management, sidewalk and trail systems, and 
subdivisions. Mr. Blount will present individual issues and text amendments at regular Board 
meetings. 

 
The Board recessed for lunch from 12:30 p.m. to 1:08 p.m. 
 
7. Board Discussion              Set Goals and Priorities 
The Board gave input on each of the twelve goals that was identified during the morning 
discussion. The Board members’ level of priority for each item was tallied to recognize those with 
the highest priority. The results are shown in the table below. 
 

Town of Granite Quarry Page 8



Item High Medium Low 
1. Streets 5 0 0 
2. Sidewalks 5 0 0 
3. Police Department Salaries 4 1 0 
4. Charter/Ord./Policies 4 1 0 
5. Stormwater 3 1 1 
6. Master Plan (Town) 3 1 1 
7. Finance Policies 0 5 0 
8. Sidewalk & Trail Plan 0 4 1 
9. Maintenance Equipment 1 4 0 
10. Code Enforce. Ord. Review 2 3 0 
11. Building Needs 1 3 1 
12. Parks Master Plan 1 3 1 

 
Board Expectations for Each High Priority Item: 

A. Streets - There was discussion regarding the status of the current capital streets project 
spanning budget years and staggering the streets that are repaired in the future. There was 
a recommendation to identify money in each year’s budget for streets in the future and to 
list the completion of the current capital streets project as this year’s goal. 
 
Chief Hord’s recommendation was to consider hot patch as an alternative. The approximate 
timeframe for the purchase of equipment and training staff would be six months.  

 
B. Sidewalks - Chief Hord shared that currently 25% of all non-US 52 sidewalk repairs from 

his priority list, roughly $26,000 worth, are in progress. It was suggested that the other 75% 
be completed in the next year and that the sidewalk project on US 52 begin. There was 
discussion on traffic control and sidewalk connectivity.  

 
C. Police Department Salaries – Salaries will be covered more during the budget 

discussions. 
 

D. Charter/ Ordinances/ Policies – Policies will be discussed during the budget retreat; the 
other items are carryover projects that will continue. 

 
E. Stormwater – Mr. Blount asked the Board where they wanted to focus, how strict they 

wanted the controls to be, and what they would like stormwater management to look like 
in different areas of the Town.  

 
Mr. Smith left the meeting at 2:20 p.m. 

 
Mr. Blount revisited his presentation and discussed future growth opportunities and the 
need for a sidewalk and trail plan with the Board. There was discussion that included access 
to I-85, transportation corridors, and utility expansion. Mr. Blount asked that the Board let 
him know what their priorities were for the different action items and critical issues. 

Town of Granite Quarry Page 9



F. Town Master Plan – no discussion. 
 

G. Finance Policies – Ms. Shockley will work to collect information and policies for Board 
review and discussion as necessary. 

 
H. Sidewalk and Trail Plan – The necessity of a plan was discussed during Stormwater item. 

This item will be revisited in the future. 
 

I. Maintenance Equipment – There was further discussion on a hot patch machine, tamper, 
and trailer. The Board would like to develop a plan on where maintenance equipment will 
be stored in the future and identify steps to work towards that goal.  
 

J. Code Enforcement Ordinance Review – The Board will let the planning staff know when 
they receive feedback so the planning staff will know which areas will need review and/or 
updates. There was discussion regarding current code enforcement issues. 
 

K. Building Needs – There was discussion on whether breaking departments off into 
additional buildings would be a good idea and what would be necessary if that was done. 
 

L. Parks Master Plan - There was a suggestion that the Board put together general guidelines 
and then turn over to the PERC group for completion. 

 
The Board discussed holding a series of additional, shorter meetings to discuss the items one 
at a time. The Board would like to include all twelve of the identified items, both high and 
medium priority, on the goal list with emphasis on completing those with high priority. 
 

Adjourn 
 
ACTION:  Alderman Costantino made a motion to adjourn. Mayor Pro Tem Linker seconded the 
motion.  The motion passed with all in favor. 

The meeting ended at 3:38 p.m. 

Respectfully Submitted, 
Aubrey Smith 
Town Clerk 

Town of Granite Quarry Page 10



                                                                  
TOWN OF GRANITE QUARRY 

BOARD OF ALDERMEN  
REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

Monday, March 2, 2020 
 
Present:  Mayor Bill Feather, Mayor Pro Tem John Linker, Alderman Jim Costantino, Alderman 
Kim Cress, Alderman Doug Shelton 
 
Staff: Interim Town Manager Larry Smith, Town Planner Steve Blount, Town Attorney Chip 
Short, Town Clerk Aubrey Smith, Planning Coordinator Holly-Anne Franco, Fire Chief/ 
Maintenance Supervisor Jason Hord, Finance Officer Shelly Shockley, Police Chief Mark Cook 
 
Call to Order:  Mayor Feather called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 
 
Moment of Silence:  Mayor Feather opened the meeting with a moment of silence.   
 
Pledge of Allegiance:  The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Scout Preston Stevens. 
 
1. Approval of the Agenda 
 
ACTION:  Mayor Pro Tem Linker made a motion to approve the agenda as presented. Alderman 
Costantino seconded the motion.  The motion passed with all in favor. 
 
2. Approval of the Consent Agenda 

A. Approval of the Minutes 
1) Regular Meeting Minutes February 3, 2020 
2) Recess Meeting Minutes February 6, 2020 

B. Departmental Reports (Reports in Board packet) 
C. Financial Reports 

 
ACTION:  Alderman Shelton made a motion to approve the consent agenda as presented.  Mayor 
Pro Tem Linker seconded the motion.  The motion passed with all in favor. 
 
3. Citizen Comments - There were no citizen comments. 

 
4. Guests and Presentations: 
• Shari Evans, Executive Director of the Pregnancy Support Center - spoke to the Board 

about the services they offer members of the community. 

Town of Granite Quarry Page 11



5. Town Manager’s Update 
Mr. Smith updated the Board on the progress of many of the Town’s current goals and projects 
including the status of the permitting for the quarry property. He also shared about the Tinkergarten 
program that will be operating classes out of the Granite Lake Park. 
 
There were questions from the Board regarding the status of the FEMA grant and the Town Hall 
Project bids. The bids are due Thursday, March 5, 2020.  
 
Old Business 
6. Committee Updates 

A. Parks, Events and Recreation Committee  
Alderman Shelton shared that he attended the last meeting and the Committee was making 
progress on events for this year with the philosophy of fewer, but better. 
 
B. Revitalization Team  
Alderman Costantino stated the biggest issue for the Revitalization Team is the Town Hall 
Project and it is on target. 

 
7. MPO Grant Review 
Mr. Smith reviewed the information on his memo to the Board regarding the MPO grant 
application for Dunns Mountain Church Road. The estimate for the project is $715,000 with the 
requirement of a 20% match (between $150,000 - $175,000). 
 
ACTION: Alderman Shelton made a motion to not apply at this time. Mayor Pro Tem Linker 
seconded the motion. The motion passed with all in favor. 
 
New Business 
8. Board Appointments 
On January 20, 2020 Planning Board member Sandra Shell resigned her position as a full Town 
member.  This seat’s term expiration is 7/31/2020.  Three applications were submitted to fill the 
vacant position. 
 
The Planning Board voted to recommend Alternate Member Jamie Vanhoy be moved into the 
unexpired term of Sandra Shell and one of the new applicants be appointed to serve in the Alternate 
position Ms. Vanhoy would be vacating. 
 
ACTION:  Alderman Costantino made a motion to appoint Jamie Vanhoy to fill the unexpired 
Planning Board term of Sandra Shell ending 7/31/2020. Alderman Shelton seconded the motion. 
The motion passed with all in favor. 
 
Alderman Costantino requested to be, and was, excused from the vote on the appointment to the 
newly vacated position because his wife’s application was being considered. 
 
ACTION:  Alderman Cress made a motion to appoint Brenda Costantino to fill the unexpired 
Planning Board Alternate term of Jamie Vanhoy ending 7/31/2022. Mayor Pro Tem seconded the 
motion. The motion passed with all in favor. 

Town of Granite Quarry Page 12



9. Grant Project Ordinances 
a. FEMA Grant at Granite Lake Park 
Mr. Smith presented Ordinance 2020-04. The funds for this project would all be reimbursed 
but the numbers may change. 
 
ACTION: Mayor Pro Tem Linker made a motion to approve Ordinance 2020-04 for the 
FEMA Granite Lake Repairs Project. Alderman Shelton seconded the motion. The motion 
passed with all in favor. 

 
b. IDF Grant (Granite Industrial Park) 
Mr. Smith presented Ordinance 2020-05. The Board asked for clarification on the scope of the 
project. This would be for the sewer line extension. 
 
ACTION: Mayor Pro Tem Linker made a motion to approve Ordinance 2020-05 for the 
Industrial Development Fund Project. Alderman Costantino seconded the motion. The motion 
passed with all in favor. 

 
10. Capital Project Ordinance   Town Hall Upgrades Project 
Mr. Smith reviewed Ordinance 2020-06 for the Town Hall Upgrades Project. 
 
ACTION: Alderman Costantino made a motion to approve Ordinance 2020-06 for the Town Hall 
Upgrades Project. Mayor Pro Tem Linker seconded the motion. The motion passed with all in 
favor. 
 
Mr. Smith also reviewed his memo to the Board regarding the bid review and award process and 
suggested a possible waiver of the Town policy for the Board review and award of contract to 
expedite the process. The Board discussed the option to delegate to the architect and decided they 
would like to review the bids. They will recess the current meeting until Monday for that purpose. 
 
11. Capital Streets Improvement Project Resolution 
Mr. Smith reviewed Resolution 2020-03 authorizing the filing of an application for approval of a 
financing agreement authorized by NC GS 160A-20. 
 
ACTION: Mayor Pro Tem Linker made a motion to approve Resolution 2020-03. Alderman 
Costantino seconded the motion. The motion passed with all in favor. 

 
12. Presentation    Subdivision Review Process 

a. Presentation 
Mr. Blount presented from a PowerPoint. The information he covered included: 
• the current subdivision review process,  
• the statutory requirements for the review process, 
• the Planning Board’s recommendation that the breakpoint for minor and major 

subdivisions move from five lots to three lots,  
• and his suggestion as Planner that instead of changes to the ordinance, a sign be placed 

at all proposed subdivisions with a number to call for information. 
 
 

Town of Granite Quarry Page 13



b. Discussion 
The Board discussed the process and the recommended changes then asked that the Planning 
Board revisit the review process and discuss possible modifications or options that may allow 
more opportunity for citizen input. 
 
Mr. Blount also asked for direction from the Board on whether to reapply for the Bicycle and 
Pedestrian Grant. There was Board consensus for the Planner to pursue the grant. 

 
13. Set Date for Budget Workshop 
The Board discussed holding a budget workshop on the proposed date of March 20, 2020 at 3:30 
p.m. There were no conflicts and the Board consensus was to move forward with scheduling the 
meeting for the proposed date and time. 
 
14. Board Comments – There were no Board comments. 

 
15. Mayor’s Notes     Announcements and Date Reminders  

a. Tuesday, March 3 6:30 a.m. Primary Elections 
b. Monday, March 9 5:00 p.m. Rowan Chamber Business After Hours 
c. Monday, March 9 5:30 p.m. Planning Board 
d. Wednesday, March 11 6:00 p.m. CCOG Executive Board Meeting 
e. Monday, March 16  5:00 p.m. Parks, Events, and Recreation Committee 
f. Monday, March 16  5:30 p.m. Zoning Board of Adjustment 
g. Tuesday, March 17  3:30 p.m. Revitalization Team 
h. Thursday, March 19  7:30 a.m. Rowan Chamber Power in Partnership Breakfast 
i. Friday, March 20 11:00 a.m. GQFD Port-a-Pit Fundraiser at Lake Park 
j. Wednesday, March 25  5:30 p.m. Cabarrus-Rowan County MPO Meeting 
 

16. Closed Session 
 

ACTION: Mayor Pro Tem Linker made a motion to go into closed session pursuant to N.C. 
General Statutes Section 143-318.11(a)(5)(ii) to discuss the amount of compensation and other 
material terms of an employment contract or proposed employment contract. Alderman Cress 
seconded the motion. The motion passed with all in favor. 
 
ACTION: Mayor Pro Tem Linker made a motion to return to open session. Alderman Cress 
seconded the motion. The motion passed with all in favor. 
 
Recess 
 
ACTION:  Mayor Pro Tem Linker made a motion to recess the meeting until Monday, March 9, 
2020 at 3:30 p.m. Alderman Costantino seconded the motion.  The motion passed with all in favor. 

The meeting ended at 8:37 p.m. 

Respectfully Submitted, 
Aubrey Smith 
Town Clerk 

Town of Granite Quarry Page 14



 
                                                                               

TOWN OF GRANITE QUARRY 

BOARD OF ALDERMEN  

RECESS MEETING MINUTES 

Monday, March 9, 2020 

 
 

Present:  Mayor Bill Feather, Mayor Pro Tem John Linker, Alderman Jim Costantino, Alderman Kim 

Cress, Alderman Doug Shelton 

 

Staff: Interim Town Manager Larry Smith, Town Planner Steve Blount, Town Clerk Aubrey Smith, Fire 

Chief/ Maintenance Supervisor Jason Hord, Finance Officer Shelly Shockley 

 

Guest: Architect Danny Ray Norman, Jr. AIA of Ramsay Burgin Smith Architects, Inc 

 

Call to Order:  Mayor Feather called the meeting to order at 3:30 p.m. 

 

1. Motion to Come out of Recess 

ACTION: Mayor Pro Tem Linker made a motion to come out of recess. Alderman Costantino seconded 

the motion. The motion passed with all in favor. 

 

2. Approval of the Agenda 

Mayor Pro Tem Linker suggested adding discussion of the Water and Sewer Easements with Faith as item 

3A. 

 

ACTION: Alderman Shelton made a motion to approve the agenda with the amendment. Alderman 

Costantino seconded the motion.  The motion passed with all in favor. 

 

3. Review of Bids for Town Hall Upgrades Project 

The bids for the Town Hall Update project were received on Thursday, March 5, 2020.  Architect Danny 

Ray Norman, Jr. AIA of Ramsay Burgin Smith Architects, Inc verified each of the bids and bidders as 

“responsive” and “responsible”, respectively. 

 

The Board reviewed the tabulation of bids and the architect’s recommendation. There was discussion 

regarding the price of the project being higher than anticipated and the possibility of a budget amendment 

should it become necessary. Mr. Smith answered questions from the Board regarding the HUB reporting 

requirements necessary if the project exceeded $300,000. 

 

Mr. Norman answered questions from the Board including what the bid amount covered and the timeframe 

for completion. It would include the canopy, lighting, signage, and two light poles. It would not include 

landscaping and the side parking lot. It would be roughly a four-month project after the contracts are 

complete. 

Town of Granite Quarry Page 15



 

ACTION: Mayor Pro Tem Linker made a motion to award the Town Hall Façade Upgrades contract to 

Vertex Construction Company for the base bid of $298,120. Alderman Costantino seconded the motion. 

The motion passed with all in favor. 

 

A. Discussion of Water and Sewer Easements with Faith 

The Board discussed the water easement, location, history, and what was required of the Town. Mr. 

Smith and Mr. Short are working to resolve the issue by reaching out to the property owners, the 

engineer, and SRU. Mr. Smith will know more later in the week and be able to update the Board. 

 

ACTION: Mayor Pro Tem Linker made a motion that the Manager and Attorney be the only people 

involved in the discussions going forward. Alderman Cress seconded the motion. The motion passed 

with all in favor. 

 

The Board discussed recessing today’s meeting until Wednesday, March 11, 2020 to discuss the matter 

further. 

 

There was Board discussion regarding the sewer line and whether an agreement with Faith was made. 

There is no formal agreement. Mr. Smith will follow up on the sewer line easement as well. 

 

4. Closed Session 

ACTION: Mayor Pro Tem Linker made a motion to enter Closed Session pursuant to N.C. GS Section 

143-318.11(a)(5)(ii) to discuss the amount of compensation and other material terms of an employment 

contract or proposed employment contract. Alderman Costantino seconded the motion. The motion passed 

with all in favor. 

 

ACTION: Alderman Costantino made a motion to leave Closed Session pursuant to N.C. GS Section 143-

318.11(a)(5)(ii) to discuss the amount of compensation and other material terms of an employment contract 

or proposed employment contract. Alderman Shelton seconded the motion. The motion passed with all in 

favor. 

 

Action Taken in Closed Session: 

ACTION: Mayor Pro Tem Linker made a motion to approve the employment contract for Larry Smith as 

Town Manager. Alderman Cress seconded the motion. The motion passed with all in favor. 

 

Recess 

ACTION:  Alderman Costantino made a motion to recess until Wednesday, March 11, 2020 at 5:00 p.m. 

Alderman Cress seconded the motion.  The motion passed with all in favor. 

 

The meeting was recessed at 4:43 p.m. 

 

Respectfully Submitted, 

 

Aubrey Smith 
Town Clerk 

Town of Granite Quarry Page 16



 

                                                             
TOWN OF GRANITE QUARRY 

BOARD OF ALDERMEN  
RECESS MEETING MINUTES 

Wednesday, March 11, 2020 5:00 p.m. 
 

 

Present:  Mayor Pro Tem John Linker, Alderman Jim Costantino, Alderman Kim Cress, Alderman Doug 
Shelton 
 
Not Present: Mayor Bill Feather 
 
Staff: Interim Town Manager Larry Smith, Town Planner Steve Blount, Town Clerk Aubrey Smith, Fire 
Chief/ Maintenance Supervisor Jason Hord 
 
Call to Order:  Mayor Pro Tem Linker called the meeting to order at 5:00 p.m. 
 
1. Motion to Come out of Recess 

ACTION: Alderman Shelton made a motion to come out of recess. Alderman Costantino seconded the 
motion. The motion passed with all in favor. 

 
2. Approval of the Agenda 

ACTION: Alderman Costantino made a motion to approve the agenda with the addition of item 2A – 
Authorization for Town Manager to move forward with the contract with Vertex Construction 
Company on the Town Hall Upgrades Project. Alderman Shelton seconded the motion.  The motion 
passed with all in favor. 

 
A. Authorization for Town Manager to move forward with the contract with Vertex 
Construction Company on the Town Hall Upgrades Project  
 
ACTION: Alderman Costantino made a motion to allow the Manager to move forward with the 
contract with Vertex Construction Company for the Town Hall Upgrades Project. Alderman 
Shelton seconded the motion.  The motion passed with all in favor. 

 
3. Continued Discussion of Water and Sewer Easements 

Mr. Smith updated the Board on the progress made on the water and sewer easements. He summarized 
his efforts yesterday to clear up confusion with all parties involved including SRU and the property 
owners. There was conflict because the agreement in 2015 was executed with the prior landowner. 
 
SRU has agreed to turn on the water to the Village at Granite. Going forward, the Town will need to 
get a revision easement. 
 

Town of Granite Quarry Page 17



The other issue is the IDF grant and the sewer easement that affects Faith and the current property 
owners. Both Faith staff and Granite Quarry staff are updating their Boards. Granite Quarry staff will 
sit down with the engineer to explore options including the possibility of an alternative route. 

 
Adjournment 
ACTION:  Alderman Costantino made a motion to adjourn. Alderman Shelton seconded the motion.  The 
motion passed with all in favor. 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 5:21 p.m. 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
 
Aubrey Smith 
Town Clerk 

Town of Granite Quarry Page 18



RESOLUTION NO. 2020-04 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF ALDERMEN OF THE TOWN OF  
GRANITE QUARRY, NORTH CAROLINA IN SUPPORT OF THE CITY OF SALISBURY’S 
REQUEST FOR FEDERAL AND STATE ACTION TO PROTECT THE WATER SUPPLY FOR 

52,000 NORTH CAROLINIANS 
 
 

WHEREAS, the Town of Granite Quarry is home to over 3,000 citizens and customers of 
Salisbury-Rowan Utilities, the City of Salisbury’s water supply system, which relies on Salisbury’s 
pump station at the confluence of the Yadkin River and South Yadkin River; and 
 

WHEREAS, prompt implementation by Cube Yadkin Generation LLC of a complete, 
well-engineered sedimentation and flood protection plan for the pump station (as required by State 
and federal dam approvals) is critical to prevent significant damage to or destruction of the pump 
station by flooding; and 

 
WHEREAS, the health, safety, and welfare of our citizens, and the economic well-being 

of our Town, depend upon the prompt implementation of a plan to avoid damage to or destruction 
of the pump station by future flooding. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Aldermen, that the Town of 
Granite Quarry fully supports the City of Salisbury’s Resolution Requesting Federal and State 
Action to Protect the Water Supply for 52,000 North Carolinians, and requests that the State of 
North Carolina and the United States Government take the action requested in that Resolution. 
 
Adopted at Granite Quarry, North Carolina this 6th day of April, 2020. 

 
 

       ______________________________ 
               William D. Feather, Mayor 

 
 
 
 

ATTEST:        
 
______________________________________   
     Aubrey Smith, Town Clerk   

Town of Granite Quarry Page 19



RESOLUTION NO. 2020-05 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF ALDERMEN OF  

THE TOWN OF GRANITE QUARRY, NORTH CAROLINA  
SUPPORTING THE TOWN’S APPLICATION FOR THE  

NCDOT 2020 BICYCLE AND PEDESTRIAN PLANNING GRANT 
 

  
WHEREAS, the North Carolina Department of Transportation (NCDOT) has made 

available funding for the creation of Comprehensive Bicycle and Pedestrian Plans for 
municipalities; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Board of Aldermen for the Town of Granite Quarry (Town) has expressed 
an interest in creating such a plan; and 
 

WHEREAS, such a plan would be beneficial to the health and quality of life of the Town’s 
citizens; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Town understands that a 10% match (estimated total cost of match 
$3,500) will be required for funding, and that staff time will be required in the development of this 
Plan; and 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the Board of Aldermen for the Town of 
Granite Quarry support the Town Planner submitting a grant application for the NCDOT 2020 
Bicycle and Pedestrian Planning Grant. 

 

RESOLVED, APPROVED, AND EFFECTIVE UPON ADOPTION BY THE 
BOARD OF ALDERMEN OF THE TOWN OF GRANITE QUARRY, NORTH 
CAROLINA, ON THIS THE ____DAY OF ______________20__. 

 
 

       ______________________________ 
               William D. Feather, Mayor 

 
 
 
 

ATTEST:        
 
______________________________________   

     Aubrey Smith, Town Clerk 

Town of Granite Quarry Page 20



          Audit Contract 

Agenda Item Summary 
Regular Meeting 
April 6, 2020 
Agenda Item 2.A.7  

Summary: 
The contract to audit financials for the fiscal year ending June 
30, 2020 has been submitted by Eddie Carrick, CPA, PC. The 
contract and engagement letters from Eddie Carrick, CPA, PC 
and Tony Brewer, CPA, PC have been attached for Board 
Review. 

Attachments: 
• Audit Contract
• Engagement Letters (2)

Action Requested: 
Motion to authorize the Town to enter into an Audit Contract 
with Eddie Carrick, CPA, PC. 

Motion Made By: 
Jim Costantino 
Kim Cress 

John Linker 
Doug Shelton 

Second By: 
Jim Costantino 
Kim Cress 
John Linker 
Doug Shelton 

For: 
Jim Costantino 

Kim Cress 
John Linker 
Doug Shelton 

Against: 
Jim Costantino 
Kim Cress 
John Linker 
Doug Shelton 

In case of tie: 
Mayor Bill Feather 

For          
Against     

Town of Granite Quarry Page 21



Town of Granite Quarry Page 22



Town of Granite Quarry Page 23



Town of Granite Quarry Page 24



Town of Granite Quarry Page 25



Town of Granite Quarry Page 26



Town of Granite Quarry Page 27



Town of Granite Quarry Page 28



Town of Granite Quarry Page 29



Town of Granite Quarry Page 30



Town of Granite Quarry Page 31



Town of Granite Quarry Page 32



Town of Granite Quarry Page 33



Town of Granite Quarry Page 34



Town of Granite Quarry Page 35



Town of Granite Quarry Page 36



Town of Granite Quarry 
Fire Department 

Established May 15th, 1950 
       PO Box 351  

 www.granitequarrync.gov     Granite Quarry, NC        704/279-5596 

 Board Report April Meeting/2020 Chief Hord 

Emergency Calls for Service February 2020 
24 calls in district 

• 14- EMS (including strokes, falls, diabetic, CPR and other Medical needs)
• 1- Structure Fire - Fire out on arrival
• 2- Service Call (non-emergency assistance)
• 2- MVA’s (Motor Vehicle Accident)
• 1- Tree Down
• 2- Fire Alarm
• 1- Move up to our quarters
• 1- Gas Leak

5 calls to Salisbury 
• 3- Alarm/Structure, EMS calls canceled en-route
• 2- Structure Fires, manpower

11 calls to Rockwell Rural 
• 6- Alarm/Structure, EMS calls canceled en-route
• 5- EMS

5 calls to Union 
• 2- Alarm/Structure, EMS calls canceled en-route
• 2- EMS
• 1- Structure fire

2 Calls to Rockwell City canceled en-route 
3 Call to South Salisbury 

• 2- Alarm/Structure, EMS calls canceled en-route
• 1- Structure Fire

2 Calls to Faith FD 
• 1- Alarm/Structure, EMS calls canceled en-route
• 1- EMS

TOTAL – 52

Town of Granite Quarry Page 37



ACTIVITIES 
• Daily activities include apparatus & equipment checks, training, station maintenance,

pre-plan development, hose and hydrant maintenance, water points, emergency response,
public education, inspections and the assistance of other divisions within the Town of
GQ.

• Our monthly training included E.M.T. continuing education, Joint Training with Faith F.D.
and Rockwell Rural F.D., along with monthly OSSI/MCT meeting/training.

• Multiple days of driver training, water point training and district familiarization. Weekly
shift training on Vent Enter Search techniques, and ground ladder operations.

• Car Seat Check Station on Thursday from 1 p.m.to 4 p.m. – 2 seats installed/checked.
• Installed smoke detectors for resident.
• 4 Station/Apparatus Tours (Nonscheduled, Walkup, & Scheduled)
• Site Reviews and Business info updates with part-time and fulltime personnel.
• Thursday’s communities in school lunch with GQ elementary school students
• Ladder testing completed

EQUIPMENT 

• Pump packing repaired on E-572

• E-573/R-57 work continues

• 24’ ladder failed testing and was replaced.

Town of Granite Quarry Page 38



Police Department Report 

March 2020 

• Call volume report for the month of March 2020:

o Date of Report: 03/30/2020

o Total calls for service/activities – 286

o Calls for service/activities Granite Quarry: 244

o Calls for service/activities Faith: 46

o Incident Reports- 15

o Arrest Reports- 8

o Crash Reports- 4

o Traffic Citations- 13

• See Attached for Total Calls for Service.

• The following is the ending and average mileage for each vehicle by month:

221- End- 44,100

222- End- 50,263

224- End- 63,890

225- End- 53,632

226- End- 33,652

227- End- 49,835

228- End- 25,421

229- End- 36,642

230- End- 15,868

• Other Information:

o Average response time for March CFS is 2.59 minutes.

o Drug Collection Box. Feb 2020: 18.8 pounds collected.

o Feb. CID Report. 3 Cases assigned; 5 Cases cleared; 33follow-ups conducted; 89 open

assigned cases.

o Officers completed 50 hours of in-service or continuing education training in February.

Town of Granite Quarry Page 39



GQPD
Number of Events by Nature

March 2020 CFS

Nature # Events

104C2 COMMERCIAL BURG (INTRUSI 4

104C3 RESIDENTAL BURG ALARM 1

104D3 RESIDENTIAL HOLDUP/PANIC 1

105O2 ANIMAL-INFORMATION 1

110B2 PAST RESIDENTIAL B&E 1

110C1 POSSIBLE B&E RESIDENTIAL 1

111B1 PAST DAMAGE TO PROPERTY 1

111D1 DAMAGE TO PROPERTY 1

113B1 DISTURB / PAST VERBAL 1

113B2 OTHER NOISE COMPLAINT 2

113B4 DISTURBANCE - NUISANCE 2

113D1 DISTURBANCE / PHYSICAL 1

113D2 DISTURBANCE / VERBAL 2

114C4 VERBAL FAMILY DOMESTIC 1

114D1 PHYSICAL DOMESTIC 1

114D2 VERBAL DOMESTIC 3

114D4 VERBAL FAMILY DOMESTIC 2

116B1 DRUGS (FOUND-EQUIP) 1

118B1 FRAUD-PAST CRIMINAL 1

118B2 FRAUD-PAST FORGERY 1

123B1 MISSING PERSON 1

123B2 RUNAWAY 1

125B1 CHECK WELFARE - ROUTINE 1

125B2 LOCKOUT - ROUTINE 2

125C1 KEEP THE PEACE 1

125D1 CHECK WELFARE-URGENT 2

127D2 SUICIDE THREAT 2

129B2 SUSPICIOUS VEH (PAST) 1

129C1 SUSPICIOUS PERSON 6

Town of Granite Quarry Page 40



Nature # Events

129C2 WANTED PERSON 1

129C3 SUSPICIOUS VEHICLE 8

129C5 SUSPICIOUS CIRCUMSTANCE 2

130B2 VEHICLE LARCENY (PAST) 1

130D1 LARCENY 2

131B1 TRAFFIC ACCIDENT - PD 1

132C1 SEVERE TRAFFIC VIOLATION 2

133B1 PAST TRESPASSING 1

133D1 TRESPASSING 3

77C1 TRAFFIC ACC - INJURY 1

77D7 MOTORCYCLE INVOLVED 1

911 HANG UP 9

9D1 CARDIAC OR RESP ARREST 1

ASSIST FIRE DEPT 2

BURGLARY ALARM 6

BUSINESS OR HOUSE CHECK 58

COMMUNITY PROGRAM 6

DELIVER MESSAGE 2

DOMESTIC PROPERTY PICKUP 2

FOLLOWUP 32

GENERAL INFORMATION 5

LITTERING OR ILLEGAL DUMPING 1

OPEN DOOR 2

PARK CHECK 16

RESTRAINING ORDER 1

SCHOOL SECURITY CHECK 3

SUBPOENA SERVICE 7

TRAFFIC CHECK 2

TRAFFIC CONTROL 13

TRAFFIC STOP 46

VEHICLE ACCIDENT PROP DAMAGE 2

WARRANT SERVICE 1

Town of Granite Quarry Page 41



Planning Department 

Monthly Report 

March 2020 

17 Permit Applications 
17 Permits Approved 
00 Permits Denied 

Date Address Permit Status 
3/9/2020 138 N Salisbury Ave Temporary Sign Approved 

3/13/2020 246 E Kerns Street Accessory Building Approved 
3/13/2020 215 N Salisbury Ave Permanent Sign Approved 
3/16/2020 143 N Salisbury Ave Building Improvements Approved 
3/18/2020 101 Chamandy Drive Renovation to existing Approved 
3/20/2020 1035 Winding Creek Road Residential Approved 
3/20/2020 1055 Winding Creek Road Residential Approved 
3/20/2020 1105 Winding Creek Road Residential Approved 
3/20/2020 1115 Winding Creek Road Residential Approved 
3/20/2020 1125 Winding Creek Road Residential Approved 
3/20/2020 1155 Winding Creek Road Residential Approved 
3/20/2020 1165 Winding Creek Road Residential Approved 
3/20/2020 1175 Winding Creek Road Residential Approved 
3/20/2020 1185 Winding Creek Road Residential Approved 
3/20/2020 1195 Winding Creek Road Residential Approved 
3/20/2020 1215 Winding Creek Road Residential Approved 
3/20/2020 1225 Winding Creek Road Residential Approved 
3/26/2020 143 N Salisbury Ave Temporary Sign Permit Approved 

02 Permit Inquiries 

Inquiring Party Zoning Type Notes 
138 N Salisbury Avenue HB Sign Inquiries about new monument sign 
105 N Salisbury Avenue HB Sign Inquiry about sign changes on property 

Planning Board: PB met 3/16/2020 
• Presentation by Planner – Subdivision review process, BOA Planning Retreat recap
• Voted to change meeting time from 5:30 pm to 6:00 pm

Zoning Board of Adjustment: Meeting cancelled - No business 

Code Enforcement: 
24 New Offenses  

04 Abatement by owner / party at interest (1 abated from February)  
01 Abatement by Town  
20 Not yet due / pending disposition (2 still pending disposition from prior months) 

Town of Granite Quarry Page 42



Planning Department - Activity Report 
 
Training & Research:  

- Review other municipal sign ordinances prior to amendments 
 - Review of rezoning, site plan review and approval process for Rowan/S Main property 
 - 2020-2021 FY summary of budget item requests for Planning Department/Code Enforcement 
 - C.E. met with all business owners along Highway 52 face-to-face during the month; education 

about Ordinances and location of them on the website for review 
- List of PowerPoint presentations made available to Board of Aldermen 

 
Text amendment review:  

- Sign Ordinance text amendment review; presentation created 
 
Zoning: 

- Multiple UDO violations handled by Code Enforcement 
- Work with local sign company to ensure sign ordinance standards are met going forward 

 - Review of Phase 2 – Village at Granite submittals 
- Participated in Bicycle/Pedestrian Planning survey for UNCC and NCDOT 
- Worked with LGI on water/sewer issues at the Village at Granite 
- Census data sent to Rowan County as requested 
- Worked with developer for future subdivision on Cleo Street 

 - Meeting with NCDOT engineers about future downtown curb and gutter project 
 
Code Enforcement:  

- Types of cited offenses for the month:  
   

Sign Violation 5 
Public Nuisance Violation 14 
Landscape/Buffering 1 
Vehicles 4 
Complaint reviewed; no violation found 2 

  
          - One abatement by town with Notice of Bill sent to property owner 
          - One voluntary demolition complete in ETJ 
          - Overseeing voluntary demolition in Town Limits  
          - Quadrant visits; site visits with residents when possible  
          - Letter of Determination sent to parcel in ETJ; file closed for multi-agency review of property         
 

Town of Granite Quarry Page 43



     
                                                  
 

 
 

March 2020 Maintenance Report 
 

• Normal Maintenance Duties Daily- (parks, cleaning, mowing, edging, 
service on equipment, limbs & sweeping) 

• PM check on generator  
• Quarry property cleanup /fence per NCDEQ request  
• Sidewalk project completed 3/31/20 

• State pesticide inspection – passed  
• Town Hall project began 3/30/20 

• Sprayed Hwy 52 right of ways  
• New mulch at playgrounds  
• Mulched bank at lake Park  
• Drains opened at Lake Park for better drainage  
• Blocked off playgrounds and bathrooms for Covid-19 

• Pressure washed both parks sidewalks, gazebo, shelters  

 

 

 

 2007 Ford Truck Mileage  57,389               +243 miles 

1995 Ford Dump Truck Mileage 37,224       +130 miles       
2009 Ford Truck Mileage  66,066             +918 miles 
2019 Ford Truck F350   2,966                   +584 miles  

Town of Granite Quarry Page 44

http://www.granitequarrync.gov/


.

Budgeted YTD

Revenues: 3,208,360 2,071,705 65%
     Total Revenues: 3,208,360$          2,071,705$       65%

Expenses:
Governing Body 16,787 8,707 52%
Administration 619,481 444,152 72%
Maintenance 302,619 229,695 76%
Police Dept. 743,422 489,549 61%
Fire Department 503,781 376,565 75%
Sanitation/Environmental 185,120 144,326 78%
Parks & Recreation 39,000 28,459 73%
Special Projects 798,150 19,353 29%
     Total Expenses 3,208,360$          1,740,807$       54%

84%

Finance Department

Please see the Budget Vs. Actual Report attached for specific line items

Department

As of March 30, 2020
Breakdown of Departments:

Expense to Revenue:

Town of Granite Quarry Page 45



Granite Quarry Finance Department As of March 30, 2020

Disp Acct Budget YTD Variance Prcnt
01-3100-12 Taxes - Budget Year 880,268 896,023 15,755 102%
01-3100-17 Tax Penalties & Interest 4,000 1,812 (2,188) 45%
01-3101-12 Taxes - Prior Years 10,000 3,273 (6,727) 33%
01-3102-12 Vehicle Tax 100,000 82,409 (17,591) 82%
01-3230-31 Local Option Sales Tax 746,653 580,134 (166,519) 78%
01-3231-31 Solid Waste Disposal Tax 2,185 1,766 (419) 81%
01-3260-41 Business Registration Fees 400 690 290 173%
01-3261-31 Cable Franshise Tax 6,397 4,407 (1,990) 69%
01-3300-36 Grants 277,800 0 (277,800) 0%
01-3315-33 Fireman Retirement 2,200 0 (2,200) 0%
01-3316-32 Powell Pave & Patch Funds 82,557 83,141 584 101%
01-3322-31 Beer & Wine - State 13,499 0 (13,499) 0%
01-3324-31 Utilities Franchise Tax 146,740 101,958 (44,782) 69%
01-3330-84 County First Responders 4,020 3,015 (1,005) 75%
01-3340-41 Permits 1,350 4,640 3,290 344%
01-3346-40 Abatements 0 545 545 100%
01-3413-89 Miscellaneous Revenue 300 1,131 831 377%
01-3431-32 Federal Asset Seizure Funds 0 5,967 5,967 100%
01-3431-41 Police Authority Revenue_Faith 153,243 109,500 (43,743) 71%
01-3431-45 Police Report Revenue 100 77 (23) 77%
01-3431-89 Police Miscellaneous 1,825 949 (876) 52%
01-3471-51 Solid Waste Collection - Salisbury 144,000 117,266 (26,734) 81%
01-3491-41 Subdivision & Zoning Fees 2,500 4,085 1,585 163%
01-3493-26 FEMA Funds 437,793 34,675 (403,118) 8%
01-3613-41 Parks Miscellaneous 0 70 70 100%
01-3713-33 Sal. Water/Sewer Reimbursement 50,000 0 (50,000) 0%
01-3831-89 Interest on Investments * 11,500 14,796 3,296 129%
01-3833-89 Donations/Contributions 0 25 25 100%
01-3834-41 Park Shelter Rentals (Maint) 5,000 2,715 (2,285) 54%
01-3835-80 Police Surplus Items Sold 1,200 174 (1,026) 15%
01-3835-81 Surplus items Sold 21,950 5,338 (16,612) 24%
01-3836-82 Sale of Land 0 3,350 3,350 100%
01-3837-31 ABC Net Revenue-Co. 9,600 7,776 (1,824) 81%
01-3991-99 Fund balance Appropriated 91,280 0 (91,280) 0%

$3,208,360 $2,071,705 ($1,136,655) 65%

Revenues:

*See last page for breakdown of account# 01-3831-89 Interest on Investments

Town of Granite Quarry Page 46



Granite Quarry Finance Department As of March 30, 2020

Disp Acct Budget YTD Variance Prcnt
01-4110-02 Mayor/Alderman Salary 12,431 6,080 6,351 49%
01-4110-03 Mayor Expense 250 0 250 0%
01-4110-08 Board Expense 800 539 261 67%
01-4110-09 FICA Expense 951 465 486 49%
01-4110-14 Insurance - Workers Comp 55 60 (5) 109%
01-4110-40 Dues & Subscriptions 800 0 800 0%
01-4110-45 Insurance & Bonds 1,500 1,562 (62) 104%
01-4110-97 Board Contingency 0 0 0 0%

$16,787 $8,707 $8,080 52%

Disp Acct Budget YTD Variance Prcnt
01-4120-00 Salaries-Regular 251,855 201,356 50,499 80%
01-4120-02 Salaries-Part Time 25,000 17,044 7,956 68%
01-4120-07 401K Expense 12,593 5,335 7,258 42%
01-4120-09 FICA Expense 21,179 16,347 4,832 77%
01-4120-10 Retirement Expense 22,541 9,487 13,054 42%
01-4120-11 Group Insurance 25,500 21,691 3,809 85%
01-4120-12 Health/Vision Insurance Overpayment 0 709 (709) 100%
01-4120-13 Unemployment Expense 0 1,033 (1,033) 100%
01-4120-14 Insurance - Workers Comp 525 557 (32) 106%
01-4120-18 Professional Services 24,000 11,228 12,772 47%
01-4120-22 Banquet Expense 1,700 1,580 120 93%
01-4120-26 Office Expense 11,000 4,731 6,269 43%
01-4120-29 Supplies & Equipment 200 141 59 71%
01-4120-31 Training & Schools 8,500 5,179 3,321 61%
01-4120-32 Telephone/Communications 3,500 2,462 1,038 70%
01-4120-33 Utilites 4,500 3,197 1,303 71%
01-4120-34 Printing 4,600 3,832 768 83%
01-4120-35 Maint/Repair Equipment 500 0 500 0%
01-4120-37 Advertising 4,500 2,823 1,677 63%
01-4120-40 Dues & Subscriptions 13,300 12,126 1,174 91%
01-4120-45 Insurance & Bonds 4,000 4,141 (141) 104%
01-4120-49 Visionary Projects 6,523 0 6,523 0%
01-4120-50 Community Projects 5,000 2,751 2,249 55%
01-4120-57 Cap Outlay - Land 62,213 62,212 1 100%
01-4120-58 Cap Outlay - Bldg $0 $16,870 (16,870) 100%
01-4120-60 Contracted Services 32,000 30,138 1,862 94%
01-4120-71 Water Line - Principal 50,000 0 50,000 0%
01-4120-72 Water Line - Interest 4,167 4,207 (40) 101%
01-4140-68 Tax Collection 18,000 0 18,000 0%
01-4170-63 Elections 2,085 2,975 (890) 143%

$619,481 $444,152 $175,329 72%

Governing Body:

Administration:

Town of Granite Quarry Page 47



Granite Quarry Finance Department As of March 30, 2020

Disp Acct Budget YTD Variance Prcnt
01-4190-00 Salaries - Regular 117,500 80,889 36,611 69%
01-4190-02 Salaries - Part-Time 34,000 24,284 9,716 71%
01-4190-07 401K Expense 5,875 4,507 1,368 77%
01-4190-09 FICA Expense 11,590 8,085 3,505 70%
01-4190-10 Retirement Expense 10,516 8,055 2,461 77%
01-4190-11 Group Insurance 23,500 17,523 5,977 75%
01-4190-14 Insurance - Workers Comp 4,650 7,222 (2,572) 155%
01-4190-20 Motor Fuel 7,000 5,240 1,760 75%
01-4190-21 Uniforms 2,000 828 1,172 41%
01-4190-24 Maint & Repairs Buildings & Grounds 7,965 7,470 495 94%
01-4190-25 Maint & Repairs Trucks 2,500 1,066 1,434 43%
01-4190-26 Office Expense 25 0 25 0%
01-4190-29 Supplies & Equipment 7,000 4,912 2,399 66%
01-4190-31 Training & Schools 250 48 202 19%
01-4190-32 Telephone/Communications 950 468 482 49%
01-4190-33 Utilities 3,000 2,315 685 77%
01-4190-34 Printing 50 3 47 7%
01-4190-35 Maint & Repairs Equip 9,698 7,782 1,916 80%
01-4190-45 Insurance & Bonds 3,050 3,151 (101) 103%
01-4190-51 Tools & Light Equipment 2,500 2,247 253 90%
01-4190-53 Cap Outlay - Veteran Memorial 0 0 0 0%
01-4190-54 Cap Outlay - Vehicles 32,660 32,559 101 100%
01-4190-55 Cap Outlay - Equipment 0 0 0 0%
01-4190-60 Contracted Services 16,340 11,041 5,299 68%
01-4190-97 Maintenance Contingency Fund 0 0 0 0%

$302,619 $229,695 $73,235 76%

Disp Acct Budget YTD Variance Prcnt
01-6130-24 Maint/Repair Bldg & Grounds 15,000 13,245 1,755 88%
01-6130-29 Supplies & Equipment 6,000 2,878 3,950 34%
01-6130-33 Utilities 15,000 11,779 3,221 79%
01-6130-60 Contracted Services 3,000 556 2,444 19%

$39,000 $28,459 $11,369 73%

Parks & Rec:

Maintenance:

Town of Granite Quarry Page 48



Granite Quarry Finance Department As of March 30, 2020

Disp Acct Budget YTD Variance Prcnt
01-4710-33 Utilities (Street Lights) 36,000 23,531 12,469 65%
01-4710-64 Recycling 42,000 33,446 8,554 80%
01-4710-65 Garbage Services 107,120 87,349 19,771 82%

$185,120 $144,326 $40,794 78%

Disp Acct Budget YTD Variance Prcnt
01-4340-00 Salaries - Regular 103,500 86,651 16,849 81%
01-4340-02 Salaries - Part-Time 200,000 126,800 73,200 63%
01-4340-07 401K Expense 5,175 4,149 1,026 80%
01-4340-09 FICA Expense 23,218 15,999 7,219 69%
01-4340-10 Retirement Expense 9,263 7,361 1,902 79%
01-4340-11 Group Insurance 25,750 20,722 5,028 80%
01-4340-14 Insurance - Workers Comp 11,100 16,125 (5,025) 145%
01-4340-17 Firemen's Pension Fund 2,200 1,240 960 56%
01-4340-20 Motor Fuel 5,000 2,730 2,270 55%
01-4340-21 Uniforms 3,000 1,357 1,643 45%
01-4340-25 Maint & Repairs - Vehicles 10,000 5,709 4,291 57%
01-4340-26 Office Expense 250 55 195 22%
01-4340-29 Supplies & Equipment 23,950 19,747 5,892 75%
01-4340-31 Training & Schools 1,500 860 640 57%
01-4340-32 Telephone/Communications 3,800 2,678 1,122 70%
01-4340-33 Utilities 5,400 4,238 1,162 78%
01-4340-34 Printing 425 104 321 24%
01-4340-35 Maint & Repairs - Equipment 3,000 1,964 1,036 65%
01-4340-40 Dues & Subscriptions 2,500 1,670 830 67%
01-4340-45 Insurance & Bonds 4,750 7,402 (2,652) 156%
01-4340-55 Cap Outlay - Equipment 50,000 39,459 0 100%
01-4340-60 Contracted Services 10,000 9,544 456 95%

$503,781 $376,565 $118,364 75%

Environmental Protection:

Fire Department:

Town of Granite Quarry Page 49



Granite Quarry Finance Department As of March 30, 2020

Disp Acct Budget YTD Variance Prcnt
01-4310-00 Salaries-Regular 398,000 256,512 141,488 64%
01-4310-02 Salaries-Part Time 10,000 8,330 1,670 83%
01-4310-07 401K Expense 19,900 13,169 6,731 66%
01-4310-09 FICA Expense 31,212 20,954 10,258 67%
01-4310-10 Retirement Expense 38,606 24,818 13,788 64%
01-4310-11 Group Insurance 83,000 51,945 31,055 63%
01-4310-14 Insurance - Workers Comp 12,750 14,229 (1,479) 112%
01-4310-20 Motor Fuel 19,000 10,207 8,793 54%
01-4310-21 Uniforms 3,250 1,743 1,507 54%
01-4310-25 Maint & Repair-Autos 9,000 6,570 2,430 73%
01-4310-26 Office Expense 1,500 897 603 60%
01-4310-29 Supplies & Equipment 8,000 2,922 5,078 37%
01-4310-31 Training & Schools 3,000 1,291 1,709 43%
01-4310-32 Telephone/Communications 8,000 5,227 2,773 65%
01-4310-33 Utilites 1,600 1,137 463 71%
01-4310-34 Printing 1,000 210 790 21%
01-4310-35 Maint & Repair - Equipment 2,000 695 1,305 35%
01-4310-40 Dues  & Subscriptions 1,900 1,330 571 70%
01-4310-45 Insurance & Bonds 11,800 12,266 (466) 104%
01-4310-54 Cap Outlay - Vehicles 54,904 35,196 19,709 64%
01-4310-55 Cap Outlay - Equipment 0 0 0 0%
01-4310-60 Contracted Services 25,000 19,901 5,099 80%

$743,422 $489,549 $253,873 61%

Disp Acct Budget YTD Variance Prcnt
01-4510-60 Chamandy Sewer/Water Taps 277,800 5,000 272,800 2%
01-4510-66 Powell - Streets 82,557 12,120 70,437 85%
01-4930-24 Community Development Maint/Rep of Bu 437,793 2,233 435,560 1%

$798,150 $19,353 $778,797 29%

Police Department:

Special Projects:

Town of Granite Quarry Page 50



Acct# Jul 19 Aug 19 Sep 19 Oct 19 Nov 19 Dec 19 Jan 20 Feb 20 Mar 20 Apr 20 May 20 Jun 20 Interest YTD Balance
Certificates of Deposits:
XX7779 418         432         432         418         432         418         432         431         403         3,816.76           250,000.00             
XX7809 356         368         368         356         368         356         367         367         343         3,250.14           250,000.95             
XX7151 356         368         368         356         368         356         367         367         343         3,246.69           250,284.54             
XX0261 287         297         297         287         297         287         297         296         277         2,622.88           251,385.06             
XX1519 206         212         212         206         212         Matured 1,048.37           -                           

1,623  1,677    1,677    1,623    1,677    1,417    1,463    1,461    1,366    -        -        -        13,984.84$   1,001,670.55$    

Money Market Accounts:
XX9011 37           39           33           37           105         139         152         129         671.59              337,521.81             
XX7545 7              7              6              7              7              7              7              6              52.34                52,837.47               
XX1186 8              8              7              8              8              8              8              7              62.82                62,469.51               

51         55         46         51         120       153       168       142       -        -        -        -          786.75           452,828.79         

NC Capital Management Trust:
XX4319 -          -          -          -          -          -          42           402         443.75$            350,443.75$           

-      -      -      -      -      -      42         402       -      -      -      -        443.75           350,443.75         

Total Interest YTD:
Total Invested Balance:
Cash on Hand *
*(As of Bank Statement on 3/30/2020)

1,804,943.09$            
15,215.34$                 

511,046.10$               

Interest on Investments by Month
For FY 2019-2020

Town of Granite Quarry Page 51



 
Town of Granite Quarry 

Interim Town Manager’s Report 

April 2020 
 
 

 

“COVID-19”… 
…that pretty much sums up the overwhelming bulk of the past 3-4 weeks.  We have gotten through 
the initial, nearly 100% of our days many days, reaction time where: 
• Town staffs learned the symptoms and response measures needed; 
• Town, county, state, and federal governments all evaluated & revamped their procedures, 

declarations, laws and regulations respectively; 
• We began adapting infrastructure, parks, and technologies to accommodate this pandemic. 

Most of the Town’s executive staff is still devoting a large % of our time in webinars, teleconferences, 
and dealing only with COVID-19 related matters, but it has decreased at least enough to allow us to 
minimally get back onto projects and normal daily responsibilities we at first had to postpone entirely. 
 
1. Alderman Cress.  He obviously scared all of us a great deal week before last.  The response time 

and amount of concerned responders was absolutely phenomenal.   
 

2. GQ FD Auxiliary - Port-a-Pit.  I cannot commend this group enough for their planning, response, 
adaptability, cooperation, and lines of communication throughout the event.  What “couldn’t 
have come at a worse time” at the initial escalation of the Coronavirus ended up being a very 
valued public service event as much as a fundraiser. 

 

You’ve heard me talk about how the common denominator of successful town programs almost 
invariably is a strong 501c3 group who coordinates and works well in conjunction with Town 
efforts.  The Auxiliary’s handling of this event is sincerely the “poster child” of that premise. 

 
3. Town Hall.  The project got started and has been progressing on time.  Based on feedback from a 

majority of you, I’ve had the architect working on estimates for some additional things that I’ll 
bring to you in a separate report so you can review and mull over. 
 

4. Industrial Development Grant.  We were able to develop an alternative proposal that not only 
resolved the environmental and procedural issues we ran into with the original design, but also 
came in at a lower estimate!  The State has given us a tentative head nod so that we can continue 
with the due diligence phase of vetting the alternative proposal and those estimates.  Engineer 
has gotten me his information, next step is meeting with property owners to discuss. 

 
5. Capital Streets Improvement Project.  If everything goes well with the information in your 

packets this evening, I have requested the Local Government Commission’s permission to submit 
the packet the next day (Tuesday, April 7th).  If so: 
• We’ll release the Request for Proposals for construction, due April 21st. 
• Have those bids tabulated in time for the May Town Board meeting. 
• (Hopefully) will hear back approval to proceed from the LGC after their May 5th meeting to 

consider the application. 

Town of Granite Quarry Page 52



Town of Granite Quarry Page 53



Town of Granite Quarry Page 54



Town of Granite Quarry Page 55



Town of Granite Quarry Page 56



   Capital Streets Improvement Project 

Agenda Item Summary 
Regular Meeting 
April 6, 2020 
Agenda Item 6  

Summary: 
Attached is the Capital Project Ordinance for the 2020 Capital 
Streets Improvement Project.  If adopted it would run for the 
length of the project, allowing us to use a percentage of any 
Powell Bill allocations we receive each year toward the 
repayment of the financing loan and its capitalized interest. 

Attachments: 
• Capital Project Ordinance 2020-07 Capital Streets

Improvement Project

Action Requested: 
Motion to approve Capital Project Ordinance 2020-07 for the 
2020 Capital Streets Improvement Project as presented. 

Motion Made By: 
Jim Costantino 
Kim Cress 

John Linker 
Doug Shelton 

Second By: 
Jim Costantino 
Kim Cress 
John Linker 
Doug Shelton 

For: 
Jim Costantino 

Kim Cress 
John Linker 
Doug Shelton 

Against: 
Jim Costantino 
Kim Cress 
John Linker 
Doug Shelton 

In case of tie: 
Mayor Bill Feather 

For          
Against     

Town of Granite Quarry Page 57



 
 
 

CAPITAL PROJECT ORDINANCE 
 

2020-07 
 

TOWN OF GRANITE QUARRY NC 
2020 CAPITAL STREETS IMPROVEMENT PROJECT 

 
 

BE IT ORDAINED by the Governing Board of the Town of Granite Quarry, North Carolina, 
that pursuant to Section 13.2 of Chapter 159 of the General Statutes of North Carolina, the 
following Capital Project Ordinance is hereby adopted: 
 

Section 1: The Project authorized is the 2020 Capital Streets Improvements Project, as 
explained in more detail on Attachment A. 
 

Section 2: The officers of this unit of government are hereby directed to proceed with the 
capital project within the terms of this project ordinance and the budget contained herein. 
 

Section 3: The following amounts are appropriated for the capital project:  

Administrative Fees  $ 10,500 
Construction Costs   339,500 
Capitalized Interest   40,750 
 Total Appropriations $ 390,750 

  
Section 4: The following revenues are anticipated to be available to complete this project: 

Powell Bill Allocations  $ 390,750 
 Total Revenues $ 390,750 

 
Section 5: The Finance Officer is hereby directed to maintain within the Capital Project Fund 

sufficient specific detailed accounting records to satisfy the requirements of all state and federal 
regulations.  

 
 
 

Town of Granite Quarry Page 58

http://www.granitequarrync.gov/


 
 
Section 6: Funds may be advanced from the General Fund for the purpose of making 

payments as due.  
 
Section 7: The Finance Officer is directed to report on the financial status of each project 

element in Section 3 of this ordinance on a quarterly basis. 
 
Section 8: The Budget Officer is directed to include a detailed analysis of past and future 

costs and revenues on this capital project in every budget submission made to this Board until 
this project is complete.  

 
Section 9: A copy of this capital project ordinance shall be entered into the Governing 

Board’s meeting minutes, and within five days after adoption, copies shall be filed with the 
Finance Officer, Budget Officer, and in the Office of the Town Clerk for direction in carrying 
out this project. 

 
 

Adopted this 6th day of April 2020 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(Seal)       ____________________________________ 
            William D. Feather, Mayor 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Attest: ____________________________________ 
  Aubrey Smith, Town Clerk 
 
 
 
 

Town of Granite Quarry Page 59

http://www.granitequarrync.gov/


 
 

ATTACHMENT A 
 

 
2020 Capital Streets Improvement Project 

Street Paving Priority List* 
    

Street Name Beginning 
Street 

End 
Street 

Square 
Yards 

N Jack St E Lyerly St Lake Dr 1250 

Yadkin St E Church St E Kerns St 2872 

N Oak St Crook St Peeler St 2392 

N Oak St W Bank St Peeler St 1955 

S Oak St W Bank St W Lyerly St 1114 

S Oak St Rowan St W Lyerly St 1968 

Rowan St Walnut St Dead End 2103 

Railroad St Depot St US Hwy 52 4394 

Depot St Main St Railroad St 374 

Depot St Railroad St US Hwy 52 1096 

N Kayla St Phillip Dr cul-de-sac 1769 
   21,287 
    

    

Patchwork*  

Kerns St  RR track fill & 12-ton dig   

N Cleo St Dig and skin 15.5 tons   

Phillip Dr  Dig cul-de-sac and entrance   

E Church St Intersection at US Hwy 52 10' width   

Foil St  Dig patch     

Garland Dr Dig patch     

Palisade Dr Dig patch     

Dominion Dr Dig patch     

Kluttz St  Dig Patch     
    

*List prioritized by Asphalt Rating Database.  Subject to amendment during 
construction based on actual site conditions and up to financial cap. 
  

 

Town of Granite Quarry Page 60

http://www.granitequarrync.gov/


   Quarry Site Grading & Fence Repair 

Agenda Item Summary 
Regular Meeting 
April 6, 2020 
Agenda Item 7  

Summary: 
The quarry property is in need of grading and fence repairs 
before it can be used as a limb and leaf site. There are several 
upgrades that have to be made for storm water and excavation 
that are included in this quote per DEQ.  

Quarry Site - Small Landfill 
Operation Price Vendor 

Clear and grind approx. 1 acre  7,500 Mid - Carolina 
Strip topsoil and build required 
berm  3,000 Mid - Carolina 
300 tons of ABC rock  10,000 Mid - Carolina 
Approx 100' 15" HDPE Pipe for 
drainage required 1,500 Mid - Carolina 
Mobilization  1,000 Mid - Carolina 
Approx 90' of 6' chain length fence 
at road  2,000 Feather Fencing 
Project not to exceed 25,000 

Attachments: 
• Estimate
• Budget Amendment Reqest FY19-20 #13

Action Requested: 
Motion to move money from fund balance to line item 01-4190-
24 in the amount of $25,000 to bring the quarry site up to the 
standard required to make the property useable for leaf and limb 
storage. 

Motion Made By: 
Jim Costantino 
Kim Cress 

John Linker 
Doug Shelton 

Second By: 
Jim Costantino 
Kim Cress 
John Linker 
Doug Shelton 

For: 
Jim Costantino 

Kim Cress 
John Linker 
Doug Shelton 

Against: 
Jim Costantino 
Kim Cress 
John Linker 
Doug Shelton 

In case of tie: 
Mayor Bill Feather 

For          
Against     

Town of Granite Quarry Page 61



Town of Granite Quarry Page 62



FISCAL YEAR 2019-2020 
BUDGET AMENDMENT REQUEST #13 

April 6, 2020 

PURPOSE: To transfer funds from Fund Balance Appropriated (01-3991-99) to 
Maintenance – Maint & Repair–Bldgs/Grounds (01-4190-24) in the amount of $25,000 to 
bring the quarry site up to standards for leaf and limb storage. 

TRANSFER FUNDS FROM: 

General Ledger Acct. # and Description  Amount 
01-3991-99 Fund Balance Appropriated $ 25,000 

TOTAL              $ 25,000 

ADD FUNDS TO: 
 

General Ledger Acct. # and Description     Amount 
01-4190-24 Maintenance – Maint & Repair-Bldgs/Grounds $ 25,000 

TOTAL              $ 25,000 

The above Budget Amendment was approved / denied by the Manager or Board on ______________. 

______________________________________ _______________________________________ 
William Feather, Mayor  Shelly Shockley, Finance Officer 

Town of Granite Quarry Page 63



       Virtual Meeting Platform Contract 

Agenda Item Summary 
Regular Meeting 
April 6, 2020 
Agenda Item 9  

Summary: 
After reviewing the three most highly recommended platforms 
[Zoom, GoToMeeting (dba LogMeIn), and WebEx)], staff 
recommendation is that we go with the Business Plan for 
GoToMeeting. They have offered it for $10/m on an annual 
contract (reduced from $16/m on an annual plan or $19/m on a 
monthly plan). 

This plan would include: 
• a dial-in conference line,
• unlimited meetings,
• no meeting time limits,
• unlimited recording,
• up to 25 webcams at once, and
• up to 250 participants.

Action Requested: 
Motion to approve entering a contract with LogMeIn for $10.00 
per month for twelve months for virtual meeting platform 
hosting services. 

Motion Made By: 
Jim Costantino 
Kim Cress 

John Linker 
Doug Shelton 

Second By: 
Jim Costantino 
Kim Cress 
John Linker 
Doug Shelton 

For: 
Jim Costantino 

Kim Cress 
John Linker 
Doug Shelton 

Against: 
Jim Costantino 
Kim Cress 
John Linker 
Doug Shelton 

In case of tie: 
Mayor Bill Feather 

For          
Against     

Town of Granite Quarry Page 64



April 2020 
Sunday Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday 

1 2 3 4 

5 6 7 8 9 10 11 
Walk in the Park Lake 
Park 10:00am-12:00 pm 
BoA Regular Mtg. 7:00pm 

CCOG Executive 
Board Mtg. 6:00pm 
(virtual) 

Good Friday – 
Office Closed 

12 13 14 15 16 17 18 

Planning Board 6:00pm 
 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 

ZBA 5:30pm Revitalization 3:30pm MPO TAC Mtg. 5:30pm 

26 27 28 29 30 

EVENTS 
Town of Granite Quarry Page 65


	Board of Aldermen Regular Meeting Agenda April 6, 2020
	Approval of Agenda
	Approval of Consent Agenda
	2/28/2020 Planning Retreat Minutes
	3/2/2020 Regular Meeting Minutes
	3/9/2020 Recess Meeting Minutes
	3/11/2020 Recess Meeting Minutes
	Resolution 2020-04 Supporting Salisbury's Request for Water Protection
	Resolution 2020-05 Support for Bicycle & Ped Grant Application
	Audit Contract
	Departmental Reports
	Financial Reports

	Town Manager Report
	Public Hearing Financing Contract Award
	Amended Resolution 2020-03

	Capital Streets Installment Financing
	Quarry Site Grading & Fence Repair
	GoToMeeting Contract
	April 2020 Calendar

	Button1: 
	Button2: 


